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Contents of the Addendum 

A. Questions and Answers – Enclosed are questions and answers that were asked at the 
Pre-submission Conference, as well as questions emailed to the RFP email address.  
 

B. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those who attended the Pre-
submission Conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact information. 

 

 

  



A. Questions and Answers 

General 

1. Will the attendee list from the pre-submission conference be shared? 

Contact information will be shared for Pre-submission Conference registrants who 
indicated a willingness to share their contact information during registration. 

2. Will the audio and/or video recording of the pre-submission conference be 
shared? 

No, however the presentation deck is now posted on the RFP webpage. 

3. Is the submission fully online? There is language about flash drives under the 
Submissions heading in Section V. Selection Process of the RFP. 

The submission will be fully online - physical submissions and flash drives will not be 
accepted. Please refer to Section III. Submission Instructions in the RFP. 

4. Do you anticipate the submission deadline to shift due to the COVID pandemic? 

No, we do not anticipate changing the deadline for submissions  

5. What kind of community facilities/commercial spaces were envisioned by the 
community visioning process for the sites? 

Please refer to the development goals section of the RFP and the Bedford-Stuyvesant 
Housing Plan for more information on community preferences. 

Development Team and Experience 

1. Is HPD seeking joint ventures to submit responses to this RFP? 

There is no preference for joint ventures. As per the RFP, qualified respondents may be 
for-profit, non-profit, or joint venture entities that demonstrate the experience and 
capacity to implement the Project in accordance with community development objectives 
and long-term equitable investments in neighborhoods. HPD encourages potential 
respondents to assemble a complete, experienced, and competitive development team. 

2. With respect to the M/WBE requirements, is there a 25% goal for M/WBE 
participation in the project as a whole, or a 25% minimum ownership stake for an 
M/WBE or non-profit entity in the joint venture? 

There are two separate M/WBE-related requirements for RFPs on City-owned land. The 
first requirement is compliance with the M/WBE Build-Up Program, which requires that 
for projects where HPD/HDC contributes two million dollars or more, 
developers/borrowers must spend at least a quarter of HPD/HDC-supported costs on 
certified M/WBEs over the course of design and construction. The second, new 
requirement is for an M/WBE or eligible non-profit entity to hold a minimum 25% 
ownership stake in the project as part of a joint venture. 

https://www1.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/bed-stuy-community-wealth-wellness-rfp.page
https://www1.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/m-wbe-build-up-program.page
https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/hpd/downloads/pdfs/services/calculating-minimum-goal.pdf


3. For the new M/WBE and non-profit ownership requirement, does the 25% 
minimum need to be held by one M/WBE or non-profit entity, or can the 25% 
minimum be split by more than one M/WBE or non-profit entity? 

One M/WBE or eligible non-profit entity must hold a minimum 25% ownership stake in 
the project – it cannot be split by more than one entity. 

4. Can non-profit organizations be a part of more than one respondent team, either 
as part of the joint venture, or as a service provider or community partner? 

Members of Development Team(s) and/or neighborhood partners/service providers are 
allowed to participate in multiple Proposals provided they do not have an ownership 
stake in more than one Proposal. We highly advise that any entity participating in 
multiple Proposals disclose the extent of their involvement in all Proposals for which they 
are participating to other members of the Development Teams for such Proposals. 

5. Is there a preference and/or competitive credit for Community Land Trusts (CLTs) 
on either site?   

There is no preference for CLTs. HPD encourages responses from CLTs.  

6. With respect to the development experience requirement for a developer to have 
developed a mixed-use development containing at least 10 or 60 units (for Site 1 
and 2, respectively) in the past 7 years, do the developments need to hold 
Certificates of Occupancy in order to qualify? 

Yes, the developments cited for fulfilling the development experience requirement must 
have a certificate of occupancy to be considered complete. 

7. If a member of the development team has experience developing buildings 
containing residential units only, does the development team meet the Developer 
Experience Threshold Requirement? 

The Developer Experience and Capacity threshold requirement for this RFP states that a 
Principal of the development team must have developed a mixed-use project (a building 
containing residential units as well as a non-residential use – for example, retail or 
community facility). The mixed-use project being used to fulfill the development 
experience requirement must also contain the minimum number of units specified for 
each site in Section VI. Submission Requirements and Competitive Preferences. 

8. Are overseas/foreign developments eligible towards the comparable development 
experience requirement? 

The Threshold Requirements for this RFP do not specify the geographic location of 
projects that qualify towards past development experience, however the development 
experience must be comparable to the size and scope of the RFP Sites.  

 

 

 



Finance 

1. Are financial proposals to assume a “not-to-exceed” (“NTE”) rule with respect to 
the project’s budget? 

Financial proposals must be in compliance with HPD-HDC term sheets to meet 
Threshold Requirements. Please also refer to the Financing and Affordability Criteria in 
Section VI. Submission Requirements and Competitive Preferences of the RFP. 

2. Does the requirement for 100% of the units be affordable mean that all units must 
serve households below 80% AMI? 

All units must be income restricted per the term affordable housing term sheet specified 
by the respondent in the submission, which may include units that are above 80% AMI.   

Internet Access Plan 

1. Who pays for the internet infrastructure and the internet service? Is WiFi service 
required, or just the infrastructure to provide internet access. 

Respondents should propose strategies to finance the internet infrastructure as well as 
the internet service itself. Respondents should also propose how internet service will be 
provided (WiFi, or otherwise). 

Other 

1. How many hires are required through HireNYC? 

If selected, the Developer, General Contractor, and certain Subcontractors will be 
required to participate in HireNYC. For more information about HireNYC, see HPD and 
SBS websites.  

2. Is there a preferred vendor list for internet service providers? 

No, there is no preferred vendor list.   

Design 

1. What extent of drawings (by registered architects or professional engineers) 
needed for the submission?  

Please refer to the Tab M portion of Section VII. Submission Content in the RFP for a list 
of drawings that should be included in each submission. In general, submissions should 
provide schematic drawings that describe and represent the project effectively. Please 
note that while we require illustrative graphics that communicate the building’s design 
approach, renderings are not required.  

2. Can teams propose GIFs or videos as part of the design submission? 

No. We discourage submitting design materials over and above what the RFP requests 
under Tab M of Section VII as referred to above. 

3. Is there an interest or preference for modular construction? 

Submissions may propose modular construction, but there is no preference for such.  

https://www1.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/hirenyc.page
https://www1.nyc.gov/site/careerpathways/strategy/hireNYC.page


Site 2 (Fulton-Saratoga) 

1. Should development teams propose two buildings or developments, or can teams 
propose one building? 

The RFP states that there should be two separate developments: one development that 
contains at least 80 senior housing units using the HPD SARA term sheet, and a second 
development that contains the development program of the respondent’s choosing that 
adheres to HPD-HDC term sheets. 

2. Can the rear yards for the two separate developments be connected or shared? 

Yes. Respondents may propose a shared or connected rear yards along with a detailed 
zoning analysis. 

3. Will the two developments be financed concurrently by HPD, or is there a 
preference for a phased approach? 

Submissions may propose a phased or non-phased approach, as long as the two 
developments are distinct in that one must be a senior housing program. 

4. We have heard there is a new SARA term sheet being released soon. Should 
proposals use the existing SARA term sheet or the updated term sheet? 

Proposals should use the existing SARA term sheet that is in effect, unless otherwise 
instructed through a subsequent addendum. 

5. With respect to the Community Wealth and Wellness theme of the RFP, during 
review, is there a specific weighting for “community wealth” as opposed to 
“community wellness”? 

No, the Community Wealth and Wellness theme should be viewed as a holistic one that 
addresses the linkages between community wealth (I.e. wealth-building and access to 
resources and tools) and the various resources that help bolster a community’s physical, 
mental and social wellness. Please refer to the narrative provided under Section IV. 
Project Overview for more context.  

6. Does the policy for 50% of units be reserved for residents of the local community 
board apply to the RFP sites? 

At this time, the community board preference is still in effect for projects using HPD term 
sheets, with the exception of the SARA term sheet. 

7. Will physically or mentally disabled households be eligible to live in the eventual 
development? 

HPD projects are marketed in accordance with fair housing laws.  As such, building 
owners may not discriminate based on physical or mental disability.  Please refer to 
HPD’s marketing guidelines for additional information on marketing standards and 
certain marketing preferences for households with special needs.  Refer also to the HPD 
Design Guidelines for New Construction for details on accessibility requirements.   

 



B. Contact Information 

Contact information is provided for those individuals who attended the pre-submission 
conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact information. 

 

Name Organization Email 
A. Keith Gordon NCV Capital Partners LLC Keith@ncvcapital.com 
Abdullah L. Qadar U.S. Universal Services Group LLC Ususgroupllc@gmail.com 
Alicia Garcia Suite 1002 alicia@themonroegroupllc.com 
Amy Larovere A Larovere Consulting LLC amy.larovere@alconsulting.us 
Amy Shakespeare Shakespeare Gordon Vlado Architects amy@sgvarch.com 
Andre Green Green Rose Real Estate GreenRoseCap@gmail.com 
Andrea Kretchmer Xenolith Partners LLC andrea@xenolithpartners.com 
Andy Cohen BRP Companies acohen@brpcompanies.com 
Anselma Arthur None Lawrence.selma@yahoo.com 
Anthony Shitemi Urban Architectural Initiatives RA P.C. tshitemi@uai-ny.com 
April Burch-Sookra Sookra Properties LLC aprilsookra@gmail.com 
Arunabha Chakravarty MHANY Management, Inc. achakravarty@mutualhousingny.org 
Audrey Nonemaker The Community Builders audrey.nonemaker@tcbinc.org 
Belinda Berisha ANGKOR CORP Belinda@angkor-corp.com 
Bernie Carr Benchmark Title Agency LLC bcarr@benchmarkta.COM 
Betsy Rudy Yellowtrees br@yellowtrees.com 
Brian Halusan St. Nicks Alliance bhalusan@stnicksalliance.org 
Calista Ho MHG Architects cho@mhgarch.com 
Cameron Kostyra Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc. ckostyra@selfhelp.net 
Charlie Stewart St. Nicks Alliance cstewart@stnicksalliance.org 
Chris Lebron Xenolith Partners LLC chris@xenolithpartners.com 
Christine Noel Genesis Companies cnoel@genesiscompanies.com 
Christoph Stump Trinity Financial cstump@trinityfinancial.com 
Christopher Walker Aufgang Architects, LLC Christopher@aufgang.com 
Courtney Horwitz Strada Ventures LLC courtney@stradanyc.com 
Dan Iacovella Community Revival zestfully@gmail.com 
Dan Stadt Alembic Community Development dstadt14@gmail.com 
Daniel Brass Conifer LLC dbrass@coniferllc.com 
Daniel Kent Lantern Organization danielfkent@gmail.com 
Danielle Baez CUCS danielle.baez@cucs.org 
David Cunningham David Cunningham Architecture Planning 

pllc 
david@dcapny.com 

David Downs Catholic Charities Brooklyn and Queens david.downs@ccbq.org 
Dawne David-Pierre Moody Nolan Inc ddavidpierre@moodynolan.com 
Diana Benjamin New Genesis Pathfinder, LLC Diana@newgenesispathfinder.com 



Diego Jaramillo Property Resources Corporation DiegoJ@prcny.com 
Dolly Soto The Community Builders dolly.soto@tcbinc.org 
Donald C Matheson Almat Urban LLC Dm@audevco.com 
Douglas Gauthier GA ganyc@me.com 
Drew E Vanderburg RiseBoro Community Partnership Inc. dvanderburg@riseboro.org 
Eli Meltzer Meltzer/Mandl Architects, P.C. eli@meltzermandlpc.com 
Eliot Hetterly West End Residences HDFC Inc ehetterly@westendres.org 
Erick Ascencio Danois Architects eascencio@danoisarchitects.com 
Erik Chu Erik Chu Architects and Rodney Leon AIA echu@erikchu.com 
Eugene Mekhtiyev IMC Architecture emekhtiyev@imcarch.com 
Eva Perez de Vega e+i studio Info@eistudio.net 
Everett Perry Urban Ecospaces, Inc. evperry@urbanecospaces.com 
Ezra Brathwaite St Nicks Alliance ebrathwaite@stnicksalliance.org 
Faisal Farhana Core Construction Group Corp faisal@corecgc.com 
Fernando Villa Magnusson Architecture & Planning Fvilla@maparchitects.com 
Frank Dubinsky Monadnock Development fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com 
Gale Kaufman Duvernay + Brooks LLC gkaufman@duvernaybrooks.com 
Gillian Sollenberger BRP Companies gsollenberger@brpcompanies.com 
Gloria Alsobrook HPD gjalsobrook@gmail.com 
Gordon Bell Restoration gbell@restorationplaza.org 
Gwendoline Ramcharran West Coast Interior/Dhami Enterprises 

JV, LLC 
gwendoline@wcrenovation.com 

Harris Bedell Pembroke Residential hbedell@dvln.com 
Harry Stendhal Fluxus LLC harry.stendhal@fluxus-prefab.com 
Hillel Love Yona Love Consulting Services Inc. hillell@yonalove.com 
Ingrid Hernandez Ingrid Ingridhernandez822@Gmail.com 
Ira Brown The Briarwood Organization, LLC ibrown@briarwoodorg.com 
J. Naomi Glean Ruzow & Associates Naomi@ruzowandassociates.com 
Jacqueline de Dios R.F. Wilkins Consultants jdedios@rfwconsultants.com 
James Johnson-Piett Urbane Development jjp@urbane-dev.com 
Jane Christen Pennrose jchristen@pennrose.com 
Jeff Wandersman Palette Architecture JEFF@PALETTEARCH.COM 
Joan Beck New Destiny Housing Corporation jbeck@newdestinyhousing.org 
John Larounis MDG Design + Construction JLarounis@mdgny.com 
Jonathan Edward Hunter 1199 SEIU jblades1199@Gmail.com 
Jordanna Lacoste Urban Builders Collaborative LLC jlacoste@lettire.com 
Jorge Chang Urban Architectural Initiatives jchang@uai-ny.com 
Joseph Moyer Magnusson Architecture and Planning jmoyer@maparchitects.com 
Juliana Bernal Guinand Habitat for Humanity NYC jbernal@habitatnyc.org 
Justine Buchanan Alexander Gorlin Architects justine@gorlinarchitects.com 
Karen Gorman WellLife Network Inc Karen.Gorman@WellLifeNetwork.org 
Karim Hutson Genesis Companies khutson@gensiscompanies.com 



Karolina Czeczek Only If Architecture PLLC kc@only-if.com 
Katie Devine Rockabill kdevine@rockabill.com 
Kayode Bamisile KDB Protection Inc admin@kdbprotectioninc.com 
Kelly Biscuso RiseBoro Community Partnership kbiscuso@riseboro.org 
Keri Curtis CSD Housing kcurtis@csdhousing.com 
Kiney Corbett k corbette realty group llc corbettegroup@yahoo.com 
Kuza Woodard Brisa Builders Development LLC kuzawoodard@brisabuilders.com 
Larry Gordon The Doe Fund, Inc. lgordon@doe.org 
Latoya Kamdang Moody Nolan Inc lkamdang@moodynolan.com 
Lauren LaMack Services for the UnderServed llamack@sus.org 
Lauren Amicucci BRP Companies lamicucci@brpcompanies.com 
Leo Goldberg Center for NYC Neighborhoods leo.goldberg@cnycn.org 
Lorinda Karoff Karoff Consulting lkaroff@karoffconsulting.com 
Lorne Norton IMPACCT Brooklyn lorne_norton@impacctbk.org 
LUIS BOOTH LUIS BOOTH & ASSOCIATES LB5589@gmail.com 
Madonna Thompson Titanium streets madonnathompson05@yahoo.com 
Manish Savani M.S. Savani Architect PC mss@mssarch.com 
Margarita Pajaro CB-Emmanuel Realty LLC margarita.pajaro@cbemmanuel.com 
Mark Gordon SGVA mark@sgvarch.com 
Marta Sanders Architecture Outfit marta@archoutfit.com 
Michael Gelfand MHG Architects PC Mgelfand@mhgarch.com 
Michael McCarthy Alembic Community Development mmccarthy@alembiccommunity.com 
Michael McCaw Michael Ivanhoe Mccaw Architect PC mmccaw@mimarchitects.com 
Michael Newman CSD Housing, LLC mnewman@csdhousing.com 
Michael Nyamekye Dantes Partners michael@dantespartners.com 
Michael Pilla DP Group General 

Contractors/Developers 
mpilla@dpgroupgc.com 

Nadja Barlera GNY LECET nbarlera@gnylecet.org 
Natasha John Eli Brown Inc. natashaejohn16@gmail.com 
Nicole Vlado Shakespeare Gordon Vlado Architects nicole@sgvarch.com 
Olga Jobe AHRES Consulting, LLC ojobe@ahresconsulting.com 
Pamela M Junior Dreams for Tomorrow, Inc. pjunior2@aol.com 
Paola Duran HANAC INC pduran@hanac.org 
Peter Miller Palette Architecture peter@palettearch.com 
Phil Petri MDG ppetri@mdgny.com 
Racquel Grant The Campaign Against Hunger rgrant@tcahnyc.org 
Randall Toure RiseBoro Community Partnership rtoure@riseboro.org 
Raymond Aviles Jr Staffing 101 Group ray@staffing101group.com 
Richard Conley New Destiny Housing Rconley@newdestinyhousing.org 
Robert Bowers Dan CM Consulting, LLC rtbowers6@aol.com 
Robert Jefferson IMPACCT Brooklyn robert_jefferson@impacctbk.org 



Roci Velandia International Native Tradition 
Interchange 

Intiinc@hotmail.com 

Samir S. Shah Urban Quotient sss@urbanquotient.com 
Samuel Richman K&R PRESERVATION samrichman@krpreservation.com 
Sarah Katerle CSD Housing, LLC skaterle@csdhousing.com 
Sarah Mourssi Goddard Riverside Community Center smourssi@goddard.org 
Satya N. Doddi Doddi Information Technologies, Inc. satya.doddi@dodditech.com 
Serena Deng The Hudson Companies sdeng@hudsoninc.com 
Serena Johnson Safety Certified Inc Cocos9958@outlook.com 
Seth Bynum Genesis Companies LLC sbynum@genesiscompanies.com 
Shaneekua Henry SLM Architecture, PC shenry@thinkslm.com 
SHANTEL BROOKS my self msshantelbrooks@gmail.com 
Sharon D Heath Moving Forward 4 You sheath2906@aol.com 
Sharon Lewis Bridge Street Development Corporation SLewis@bsdcorp.org 
Stacey Polishook Trinity Financial spolishook@trinityfinancial.com 
Tatiana Pena Trinity Financial tpena@trinityfinancial.com 
Terri Belkas-Mitchell Xenolith Partners LLC terri@xenolithpartners.com 
Thaddeus Briner Architecture Outfit thaddeus@archoutfit.com 
Thomas Brown Trinity Financial tbrown@trinityfinancial.com 
Thomas DeCaro BenchmarkTitle Agency, LLC tomdecaro@benchmarkTA.com 
TIFFANY MACK start treatment & recovery centers tiffany06882@gmail.com 
Tim McManus CCBQ POP Development tim.mcmanus@ccbq.org 
Tim Wong A. Larovere Consulting tim.wong@alconsulting.us 
Tomiko Moore Author- Moore tomikomoore@aol.com 
Trevor A Prince Constructomics, LLC tprince@constructomics.com 
Tunde Aboyade-Cole chartered capital, llc tundecole@charteredcapitalllc.com 
Val Henry Local Development Corporation of Crown 

Heights 
vhenry@ldcch.org 

Vanessa Vaughan nARCHITECTS vanessa.vaughan@narchitects.com 
Victor Body-Lawson Body Lawson Associates Architects and 

Planners 
vbodylawson@blarch.com 

Vira Lynn Jones Bedford Stuyvesant Museum of African 
Art/AJ Archer Construction 

seeuraven2011@gmail.com 

 


